
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Children and Education 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Monday 3 September 2018 
7.00 pm 

Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Alan De'Ath (Chair) 
Councillor Lucy Richardson 
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson 
Councillor Asif Siddique 
 

Councillor Mark Loveday 
 

Co-optees 

Eleanor Allen, London Diocesan Board for Schools 
Nandini Ganesh, Parentsactive Representative 
Nadia Taylor, Parent Governor Representative 
Vic Daniels, Parent Governor Representative 
Matt Jenkins, Teacher Representative 
 

 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Note: This meeting is open to members of the public. A loop system for hearing 
impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 23 August 2018 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Children and Education Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

3 September 2018 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS   

 To appoint the following co-opted members for the 2018-19 Municipal 
Year: 

 Eleanor Allen, London Diocesan Board for Schools 

 Nandini Ganesh, Parentsactive Representative 

 Nadia Taylor, Parent Governor Representative 

 Vic Daniels, Parent Governor Representative 

 Matt Jenkins, Teacher Representative 
 

 

2.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  4 - 10 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 4th of July 
2018. 
 

 

3.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
 

 



Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.   
 

5.   THE FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE  11 - 34 

 This report provides information about the new Family Support service. 
Founded on 1 April 2018 as an independent Local Authority Trading 
Company, Family Support was created to support all Hammersmith & 
Fulham families so they can access the right help and support faster. 
 

 

6.   ELECTIVE HOME EDUCATION AND UNREGISTERED SCHOOLS  35 - 40 

 This report discusses the Council’s role and responsibilities, policies, 
and procedures with regards to Elective Home Education and 
Unregistered Schools. 
 

 

7.   DIRECTOR'S UPDATE REPORT  41 - 48 

 This information item provides an overview of recent developments in 
Children’s Services. 
 

 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME   

 The Committee is asked to consider its work programme for the current 
municipal year. 
 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Children and Education 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Wednesday 4 July 2018 
 

 

PRESENT 

 
Committee members: Councillors Alan De'Ath (Chair), Lucy Richardson, 
Alexandra Sanderson, Asif Siddique and Mark Loveday 
 
Co-opted members: Vic Daniels, Nandini Ganesh, Nadia Taylor 
 
Cabinet Member: Larry Culhane 
 
Officers: Steve Miley, Bev Sharpe, Kevin Gordon, and Mandy Lawson 

 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
 
The new Chair for 2018-19, Councillor Alan De'Ath, welcomed everyone to the 
meeting and invited the Committee members to introduce themselves. He then took 
a moment to thank the previous Chair of the Committee, Caroline Needham, for her 
hard work and dedication over the years to both the Committee and the wider 
community. 
 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF A VICE CHAIR  
 
RESOLVED 
Councillor Mark Loveday was appointed as Vice Chair for the 2018-19 municipal 
year. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2018 were approved. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Asif Siddique. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Matt Jenkins and Eleanor Allen. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5. AN INTRODUCTION TO SCRUTINY IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM  
 
This item was presented for information only. 
 
 

6. PRIORITIES AND CHALLENGES FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES IN 2018-19  
 
Steve Miley, Director for Children's Services, gave a presentation on the key 
priorities and challenges for the department over the coming year. He started with 
the department's vision: 
 
"To improve the lives and life chances of our children and young people; 
intervene early to give the best start in life and promote wellbeing; 
ensure children and young people are protected from harm; 
and that all children have access to an excellent education and achieve their 
potential. 
All of this will be done whilst reducing costs and improving service effectiveness." 
 
Demographics 
Steve then talked about the population and demographic profile of the borough – 
child poverty was relatively high at 29.7%, the child population was diverse with 46% 
being from a BME background, and nearly half of all school children had English as 
an additional language. 
 
Safeguarding 
Steve highlighted some of the headline figures for safeguarding – in 2017-18 the 
department had 4208 contacts, 1651 referrals, 1496 children in need, 135 child 
protection plans, and 230 children in care. 
 
Key challenges 
Steve then talked about the key challenges for the service. The central challenge of 
2018 had been setting up a new sovereign department after the Council came out of 
the ‘tri-borough’ service sharing arrangements. As part of this process there had 
been a reorganisation of services - with a new department, Public Services Reform, 
taking over the commissioning function from Children's Services. 
 
Education overview - Jan Parnell 
Jan Parnell, the Assistant Director for Education, gave a presentation on the 
borough’s schools and educational challenges. She noted that Hammersmith & 
Fulham had 94 percent good or outstanding schools (as judged by Ofsted) - a strong 
base to work from. She said she wanted to develop relationships with heads and 
give them a shared leadership role in partnership with the Council. Her goal was for 
schools to be advisors to each other with peer reviews, mentoring from outstanding 
schools etc. The education department would have a facilitator / coordinator role and 
provide expertise where necessary. 
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The key challenges for education were the ongoing funding pressures on schools. 
The ‘National Funding Formula’ moved money from London to the Counties. While 
there had been small increases in funding from the Government, it didn’t match the 
increase in their costs. Another key challenge was more children with high levels of 
need, and more complex needs in general. Another key area was the school estate. 
Some of the school buildings were ’less than satisfactory’. Officers were working on 
development ideas to design a sustainable estate for the future. 
 
Kevin Gordon noted that school expansion in past years had led to a surfeit of 
primary school places. Over the last 5-10 years the Council had maintained a 
surplus in preparation for new developments but this presented problems for schools 
- both in terms of funding and the impact to their overall maintenance costs. Kevin 
added that officers were working on the School Organisation and Development Plan 
which covered place planning and the estate and suggested it would be an important 
document for the Committee to provide a view on. 
 
Family Services overview - Bev Sharpe 
Bev Sharpe, the Assistant Director for Family Services, gave a presentation on the 
borough’s children’s social care work. She noted that there were 130 social workers 
in the department managing a caseload. Safeguarding was their key concern. 
Wherever there was a referral to the department, they would investigate to ensure 
that the basic needs of the child were being met. Bev also spoke about the other 
teams within Family Services - the Care Leavers team that supported young people 
after they left the care placements, and the Youth Offending service which worked to 
divert young people away from more serious criminal activity. The department also 
housed the Fostering and Adoption service which was a shared service but was 
managed and based in Hammersmith. 
 
Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) overview - Mandy Lawson 
 
Mandy Lawson, Assistant Director for SEND, gave a presentation on the SEND 
department and their key challenges. She noted that 20 percent of all children in the 
borough had some level of SEND support. 4.8 percent of the child population had 
Education Health and Care (EHC) plans for more complex levels of need. 
 
The SEND services incorporated: 

 The EHC planning service and the statutory SEN service. 

 The Preparation for Adulthood team - a new 0-25yrs team so care planning 
would take place all in one service. Mandy noted that this was in response to 
the recommendations of a scrutiny task group made up of Councillors and 
parents of disabled children. 

 The Educational Psychology service which provided specialist advice to 
schools and the EHC planning process. 

 Specialist teaching services for children who were deaf, had autism, dyslexia 
etc. Other boroughs including Camden, Ealing, and Kensington and Chelsea 
bought into this service. 

 The Local Offer - which was a website where parents can find information 
about SEND services for children and young people. 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 The disabled children service and short breaks service - This included the 
new Steven Wiltshire Centre, a new Centre for disabled children and their 
families. It was the first point of contact for families and the team there helped 
them get the support they needed and navigate the (very complex) system. In 
just a few short months since opening, welcome events at the Centre had led 
to 100 new families (not previously known to us) registering with our SEND 
services. 

 
Mandy also noted that the borough was home to four excellent special schools, 
Queensmill, Jack Tizard, Cambridge, and Woodlane High School. The Council also 
ran a successful supported internship programme and preparation for employment 
was a key area for the service. 
 
Mandy also highlighted the following issues for the Committee to consider:  

 A SEND Inspection was due in the next two years and would be a major area 
of focus for the department. 

 The upcoming SEND inclusion strategy - that set out what the priorities were 
and how the Council would deliver it’s SEND inclusion agenda. 

 The joint commissioning strategy. 

 How to tackle ever rising demand with fewer resources - and keeping quality 
of provision high. 

 
Committee questions and discussion 
The Chair invited the Committee to ask officers questions about their service areas.  
 
Councillor Lucy Richardson noted that the Council was moving away from the tri-
borough arrangements and asked what it was doing to replace SEND training for 
teachers. Mandy Lawson replied that within the specialist teaching outreach service 
there was enhanced SENCO support and increased capacity for SEND training. 
Hammersmith also housed the Lila Husset professional development centre. 
Councillor Richardson suggested developing peer to peer training could be an area 
for the Committee.  
 
Nandini Ganesh, Parentsactive representative, noted the issue of growing demand 
and asked if the increase was felt across all schools, including Academies. She felt 
many Academies didn’t offer the right level of support for SEND students. Mandy 
Lawson said the increase was primarily in the primary sector, where the majority of 
schools were still maintained. Hammersmith & Fulham needed to support all its 
schools to be inclusive. There was a lot of work to do to teach what level of need 
necessitated an EHC plan, or a special school place. Officers were also hoping to 
address the 0-5yrs piece by supporting parents to be more confident in mainstream 
schools, and getting children to be school ready. A related issue was the extension 
of the upper end of the age range from 19 to 25. A number of people were continuing 
in education to 25. The Chair suggested the Committee could be involved in that 
strategy. 
 
Councillor Mark Loveday asked what the process and timescales were for the 
School Development and Organisational Strategy - and when was the best time for 
the Committee to have an input. Kevin Gordon said it started with the collation of 
pupil projection data in April / May this year. The Analysis would take place in the 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Autumn and the major themes would be pulled. Officers could then present to the 
Committee in October on pupil flows and the realities of the state of stock, costs, 
opportunities etc. A draft of the document would be ready by the end of the year. As 
well as engage the Committee, officers would also be consulting schools and, 
potentially, with residents. 
 
Vic Daniels, Parent Governor representative, asked if schools had up to date 
conditional surveys and whether the Council was considering identifying issues early 
and investing to save money over the longer term. Kevin Gordon said schools did 
have conditional surveys on file from 2015 - and officers were looking to shift to a 
proactive maintenance programme. Steve Miley noted that he was speaking with 
Council colleagues in the regeneration department about reinvesting in the school 
estate. Those proposals could come to the Committee for input ahead of a decision 
at Cabinet. 
 
Vic Daniels asked if the 20 percent of pupils in the borough who had SEND support 
included Academy schools - and how easy were Academies to engage with SEND 
inclusion. Mandy Lawson said it came down to relationships - they do engage, the 
Council has services they need. The key for officers was to work together with them 
and their SENCOs. 
 
Councillor Asif Siddique asked if officers could provide more detail around how the 
Council planned to improve schools’ income generation. Kevin Gordon said it meant 
schools renting their space and selling their specialisms to other schools and 
organisations. Steve Miley added that a number of Local Authorities had already 
done this and officers were speaking to them about opportunities to take forward. 
 
Councillor Asif Siddique noted the reduction in referrals to Family Services and 
asked if this was a general trend or the result of some action taken. Bev Sharpe 
replied that it was due to a new way of managing the service. The Council brought in 
Professor David Thorpe who carried out detailed research on social work processes 
and practice. The key change he introduced was, rather than have referrers (often 
teachers, doctors, the police etc.) fill out a detailed form and assessment that would 
then be automatically investigated - a social worker will have a 20-minute phone call 
with them to better understand the concerns about the family and signpost to lower 
level support services that could help without a statutory assessment. It worked 
better for everyone involved. There would be a full evaluation of this in November 
which could come to the Committee for review. 
 
The Chair said he would like a whole meeting focussed on knife crime and serious 
youth violence - and noted that he wanted to invite a cross-section of the community 
including parents, the Police, TRA Chairs, headteachers etc. 
 
Councillor Lucy Richardson noted that officers had mentioned working more closely 
with health partners (Hammersmith CCG etc.) and asked if they were engaging. 
Steve Miley said they had recently had the first meeting of a joint inclusion board 
looking at how well we’re meeting the needs of children with SEND. It was a multi-
agency group focussed on children with disabilities and it included parents, CAMHS, 
Public Health, and the CCG. He said there were a lot of opportunities to improve the 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

way the agencies worked, and worked together. The Chair asked for a 
representative to provide regular feedback to the Committee. 
 
Councillor Mark Loveday requested that any Ofsted report for a school that gets a 
‘Requires Improvement’ rating come to the Committee for review.  
 
The Chair asked what the Committee could do to support the upcoming SEND 
inspection and Ofsted inspections. Bev Sharpe noted that there was a new Ofsted 
framework now so officers were learning from other authorities who have been 
through it. She added that officers had their annual conversation with Ofsted last 
week and it went well. The department has completed a self-assessment document 
that could come to the Committee for review. At the last inspection in 2016, 
Hammersmith & Fulham’s Children’s Services department received a ‘good’ with 
outstanding features. The Chair asked to see the action plan for improvements 
following the 2016 inspection. Steve Miley noted that officers would have 
benchmarking data soon that the Committee could look at to pull out areas for 
concern. 
 
Nandini Ganesh asked if the supported internship programme would be expanding 
next year. Mandy Lawson said the current cohort of 12 would be increased to 14 
next year. In addition, Queensmill School were launching their own programme next 
year in conjunction with Chelsea and Westminster Hospital. Residents would also be 
able to access a number of placements in other boroughs. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Children and Education, Councillor Larry Culhane, 
addressed the Committee - noting that while leaving the ‘tri-borough’ was a major 
change it presented the borough with some big opportunities to improve the way 
things are done. Education, for example, had seen huge changes over the last 10-15 
years, but now the service was sovereign again and the estate was more stable, 
H&F would be looking at what can be improved and what could be done to support 
schools. The sovereign service would be more reactive and agile in responding to 
the needs of our parents and teachers. 
 
Councillor Culhane was keen to stress the importance of working across Council 
departments and with partners to achieve the Council’s goals. Challenges like 
teacher recruitment and retention would not be solved by Children’s Services alone 
but in conjunction with Housing, Regeneration, and development partners. The 
problem of serious youth violence would need the involvement of the whole 
community - and the Committee should ensure young people themselves were at the 
heart of these conversations. 
 
The Chair directed the Committee’s attention to the Youth Council’s priorities set out 
in their manifesto for 2018/19. He highlighted work experience that had been raised 
a number of times before, and tackling the stigma of mental health. Councillor De’Ath 
led a task group on mental health support for young people under the previous 
administration and asked for a report on progress against the recommendations of 
that group. 
 
The Chair also noted that he would like themed meetings (SEND, youth violence 
etc.) - and suggested holding some in relevant venues like special schools. 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
7. H&F YOUTH COUNCIL MANIFESTO 2018-19  

 
This item was presented for information only. 
 

8. WORK PROGRAMMING 2018-19  
 
The following additional items and areas were suggested for consideration: 

 Family Support and early help - how the Council could intervene at the 
earliest possible stage to avoid long term problems. 

 Work experience and career advice. 

 Knife crime and anti-social behaviour (later in the Autumn).  

 Volunteering programmes for young people.  

 Intergenerational inclusion projects. 

 Co-production of services - exploring more ways to do this. Training people to 
advocate for themselves. 

 Secondary school place allocations - what can be done to improve this and 
ensure more pupils get their first choice of schools. 

 Greater oversight of alternative provision - were exclusions being handled 
appropriately (i.e. are they used as the last resort) and what happens to 
students after they leave. How can we improve lives of these students? 

 Addressing the child poverty level in the borough - work opportunities, early 
interventions. Using the pupil premium in more creative ways. 

 
 

Meeting started: 7.05 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.55 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
 
 
Contact officer David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 10



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Family Support 

Business Plan

August 2018

Local children and young people develop resilience through experiencing loving and nurturing relationships that 

supports their optimal brain development and maximises life opportunities.  As a result, less local children require 

intensive health and social care involvement and social care budgets are reduced.

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Who we are

Hammersmith & Fulham Council’s Cabinet paper’s executive summary

set out that:

“The Integrated Family Support Service, {now Family Support} will deliver improved

outcomes through the provision of high quality effective whole family early

intervention, delivered in the community, and which will drive through significant

delivery efficiencies.

Prevention and early intervention are built into the core of the model, along with

the importance of working in partnership with families and local communities. The

approach is collaborative and based upon the belief that early help is best

addressed by integrated practice and an integrated workforce amongst all those

supporting families across the Borough.”

P
age 12



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Launched on 1st April 2018

We are rooted in Hammersmith and Fulham and we will provide services to all

children and young people aged 0-19, and to age 25 for those with Special

Education Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND), and their families living in the

Borough.

At the heart of all that we do is the understanding of the impact of brain

development on growing children. The Alberta Wellness Family Initiative

(www.albertafamilywellness.org) are leading the way in using the science of

brain development to influence practice. We will therefore we use this insight to

enable us to work with children, young people and their families to develop

resilience and good lifelong health.

P
age 13



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Our vision for Family Support is

• To provide a world class service and practice that works with and supports children, 

young people and their families to develop and achieve lifelong healthy living. 

• To support children to develop resilience through experiencing loving and nurturing 

relationships that supports their optimal brain development and maximises life 

opportunities.

• To develop and promote a common language and culture of understanding of the 

importance of brain development for all children and young people across the 

Borough. 

• To embed this understanding of brain development influence practice within health, 

social care, the voluntary sector and the wider community across Hammersmith and 

Fulham.   

• As a result, there is a reduction in demand for the higher levels of intervention and less 

children require intensive health and social care involvement and that health and 

social care expenditure is reduced.

P
age 14



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Our underpinning beliefs

We believe that fostering loving and caring relationships between a child and

their care givers during early life is the key determinant to maximising their

chances of good physical, mental and emotional health as well as fulfilling their

potential.

These relationships are fundamental to the healthy development of a child’s

brain and providing the right environment will help children build a healthy

‘brain architecture’ and the foundations for success in life.

P
age 15



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

P
age 16



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Values

Our values were developed in conjunction with our staff:

Ownership – we will all take responsibility for actively supporting, enabling and 

empowering children and families.

Transparency – we will communicate honestly and frequently with both our clients 

and each other.

Challenging – we will respectfully challenge each other and our stakeholders to 

deliver the best outcomes for children and families.

Respectful – we will respect each other and all our stakeholders as equal partners in 

supporting children and families.

Reflective – we will constantly review the differing needs of our clients and our 

effectiveness in meeting these.

P
age 17



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Skills and Behaviours 

We have a valued skilled workforce in place and our structure and leadership team

will ensure that we have the right people in the right place doing the right job.

Staff will be provided with the training and support to ensure they can do their job.

We want Family Support staff to:

• Build resilience in children and young people particularly in their early years;

• Use their creativity and experience to support families to build resilience;

• Apply a family-centred approach so that practitioners have broader roles, form  

part of a fluid team and have the flexibility to be where and when they’re 

needed;

• Adopt a new culture that helps us work more effectively.

P
age 18



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Voices of children, young people and their 

families

Throughout the process of working with families, will be the integration of the

voices of the children, young people and that of their families. Central to our

approach will be the engagement with the family to understand their needs

and work with them to resolve the issues that affect them.

Children and young people will have the opportunity to describe things from

their point of view, will be continually involved and have information fed back

to them in a way that they can understand. The children and young people will

be active partners who can add value to what we are delivering and planning.

P
age 19



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Evidence of impact
We are ambitious for families and want to make sure that the work that we do, 
the services we deliver, the partnerships we form all impact positively on 
families.  So we will be evidence based.  

• This means that we have underpinning beliefs based on the evidence about 
brain development that influences our practice.  

• It means that we are clear about what we are trying to achieve overall and 
against specific outcomes  and can measure these. 

• And it means that we will build robust evaluation into all of our work so that 
we can demonstrate impact to families, local people, our shareholder and 
potential partners and investors.

P
age 20



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Our organisational culture 

We are establishing the Family Support culture and to achieve this there are key drivers

for change, to provide:

• empowered Leadership and Autonomy of decision making where applicable, helping

families faster and better

• tighter resourcing - that is, establishing and maintaining reasonable levels of caseload

and levels of staff autonomy to help more families faster and better.

‘Flattening’ our managerial structure means that more staff are engaged with delivering

services than before. We believe that empowering staff to make decisions, will quicken

the decision-making process and importantly ensure that the majority of our staff are

involved in actually delivering services

P
age 21



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Our behaviours

P
age 22



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

P
age 23



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Now until 2028

To understand how we get there and to ensure that we realise the long-term

changes and service delivery that we want to achieve, we have detailed the

organisational milestones that we intend to meet for:

Year 1 (2018-19)

Year 2 (2019-20)

Year 3 (2020-21)

Years 4 - 10 (2021-28)

Although we are planning to 2028, it is important as a new organisation, that

we pay particular attention to our plan in the first three years to 2021.

P
age 24



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Year 1

In Year 1, it will be our aim and focus to establish the

organisation and mobilisation and to develop our organisation’s culture.

We will have the confirmed Contract and associated resources, completed the

preparation for the transfer of staff, the novation of the contracts for our

delivery partners and the staff and management restructure will be completed.

Outcomes and data baselines will have been established the organisation’s

policies and procedures agreed.

P
age 25



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Our Digital Service 

www.family-support.org.uk

P
age 26



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Year 2

In Year 2, we will build on our achievements and continue to confirm the

organisation’s establishment. We will engage externally and locally with

organisations, mainly within the Borough, providing the opportunity for growth

and to consider a further transfer-in of services, staff and resources. We will

successfully transfer Public Health Staff. We will commence the detailed

consideration of Joint Venture Partnership work with other organisations

P
age 27



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Year 3 and beyond

By the end of Year 3, we will have secured and confirmed the future

funding of the organisation and developed our product modelling for taking

our Services and approach beyond Hammersmith and Fulham. This will inform

how we will develop our business growth plan, communication and sales

strategies. If having been agreed, we will have established and confirmed the

strategic Joint Venture partnership and agreements.

In Years 2021-28, we will have established our financial security, our income

generation and business development model. We will realise our vision and

confirm our reputation as leaders in the field of Early Help. This will benefit

from the outcomes of the longitudinal study which will report back during this

period and we will be able to identify a reduction in the use of the higher-level

intervention services with families.

P
age 28



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

P
age 29



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

P
age 30



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Our partners

We will not be able to achieve strategic aim alone and will need to work in

partnership with organisations that share our vision and ethos.

Whether this should be on single issue partnership projects or to develop a

strategic partnership arrangement will require to be decided by the Governing

Board. There are a number of different types of organisations that could

enhance our work, for example:

• a national (children’s) charity

• other Local Authorities

• NHS provider

• a venture capital arrangement with businesses

P
age 31



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

Governance and accountability

Ensuring the clarity of governance and management structures are fundamental

to providing a clear direction to Family Support’s Service Delivery. The

organisation will be governed by:

• a Management Board and

• an operational management team.

The Management Board will meet on a regular basis and will consider work

progress, finances, staffing, organisation development and growth. The Board will

be responsible and accountable for all work, policy and decisions of the

organisation.

P
age 32



Helping children, young people and their families thrive
23

Outcomes & quality assurance

The Outcomes Framework has been agreed and aims to meet this profile of

children in the Borough and forms a core part of the transfer of the organisation

infrastructure. Alongside the ‘hard’ data measurements we will collect ‘soft’

information from customer/service user feedback and case study information to

inform us how we are viewed by the children and young people and how their

views contribute to meeting the Outcomes.

Our Quality Assurance Framework will include quantitative as well as qualitative

measures of outcomes and success, identifying standards and regulation that will

be expected to be met by Family Support. It will enable continuous improvement

in the way that services are provided to children and families.

P
age 33



Helping children, young people and their families thrive

In summary

We are passionate, ambitious and we are planning for the next ten years, to 2028,

and beyond. We are rooted in Hammersmith and Fulham and we will provide

services to all children and young people aged 0-19, and to age 25 for those with

Special Education Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND), and their families living in the

Borough.

We will provide a world class service and practice that works with and supports

children, young people and their families to develop and achieve lifelong healthy

living. We will do this knowing that children develop resilience through

experiencing loving and nurturing relationships that supports their optimal brain

development.

In doing so, over time, we will reduce the demand for the higher levels of health

and social care intervention.

P
age 34



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
CHILDREN & EDUCATION 

POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

3 SEPTEMBER 2018 
 

 

ELECTIVE HOME EDUCATION, UNREGISTERED SCHOOLS AND USE OF 
PRIVATE TUTORS 
 

Report of the Director for Children’s Services – Steve Miley 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation 
 
EHE Policy and procedures – consultation with legal services, Prevent, CHS 
colleagues, DfE 
Unregistered Schools Strategy – consultation with safeguarding colleagues, Prevent 
and ratification by LSCB 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Steve Miley, Director for Children’s Services 
 

Report Author:  
Elizabeth Spearman, Head of ACE and 
Admissions 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 6231 
E-mail: elizabeth.spearman@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Elective Home Education – overview of respective responsibilities. 
Parents/carers are responsible for ensuring all children of statutory school age are in 
receipt of suitable education, in school or otherwise (s7 Education Act 1996). Any/all 
parents have a legal right to educate their children 'otherwise' than at school, 
commonly referred to as ‘elective home education’ (EHE)There are no restrictions 
due to issues such as mental health or CP status 

 
Local Authorities (LA) have a legal obligation (s437 Education Act 1996) to ensure 
that all children who are of statutory school age, who reside in the area, are in 
receipt of a 'suitable education'. The law also makes it clear that LAs have a duty to 
consider legal action, by applying for a School Attendance Order (SAO), if they have 
concerns that a child is not in receipt of a suitable education; there is no definition of 
a 'suitable education' in law 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

1.2 DfE Guidance – (EHEGLA -2007) - EHE parents often confuse the DfE 
Guidance with legislation and believe the parents right to home educate overrides 
the LA statutory role. The DfE has confirmed that Local Authorities have a statutory 
role to ensure a child is in receipt of a suitable education and it is for LAs to decide 
how to discharge this duty - each LA is therefore expected to draw up their own EHE 
policy and procedures, with due regard to legislation and guidance. In relation to the 
'suitability' of provision the DfE advice is that Local Authorities should consider the 
evidence available to conclude whether there is sufficient convincing evidence of the 
suitability of a child's education   

 
1.3 The LBHF EHE policy and procedures have been verified as being legally 
compliant by Legal Services and an independent barrister; they have due regard to 
the DfE guidance. The policy and procedures set out the local arrangements in 
relation to how LA statutory responsibilities will be met and these are made available 
to parents who EHE. In the interests of the law and equality of opportunity, the policy 
aims to deliver a fair and consistent approach with all families who EHE. 

 
1.4 Local policy and procedures are based on the view that a written or verbal 
description of provision alone, provided by a parent, cannot satisfy the LA that a child 
is receiving, or indeed benefiting from, the provision described. In LBHF a Home 
Education Adviser (HEA) offers to meet with parents and the child, to discuss the 
provision in place and see examples of work, to form a professional view about the 
provision in place. This will allow the HEA to confirm that the child is receiving the 
provision described and more importantly, how the child is benefitting from it.  

 

1.5 If parents decline to meet with the HEA, the EHE policy allows the LA to consider 
an endorsement from an education professional involved in the delivery of a child's 
education, who can confirm that the child is in receipt of, and benefitting from, the 
provision in place. Most EHE families are prepared to meet with the HEA, meaning 
endorsements have only been requested in a handful of cases 

 

1.6 Additional considerations – the LA cannot insist on a visit but does need 
convincing evidence of suitability of EHE provision. The LA cannot ‘routinely’ monitor 
EHE provision but has a duty to ensure that children who are home educated have a 
suitable education; the DfE advise that an annual meeting, consistent with the LBHF 
policy, does not constitute ‘routine’ monitoring 

 
LA officers accept that there is much flexibility on how home educators organise their 
provision; there is no obligation to follow traditional school hours either in number or 
times or to follow the National Curriculum. Parents/carers are free to decide on their 
preferred teaching style and may use private tutors, if the LA can be convinced it 
constitutes a suitable education. LA officers always makes informal enquiries and 
takes all reasonable steps to resolve any disagreements in relation to evidence of 
suitability, before resorting to initiating the SAO process  

 

1.7 National picture - Professional organisations working with the EHE community 
over time, have frequently raised concerns about the current legislation and DfE 
guidance which is believed by many to be unhelpful, unsafe and in need of revision. 
A private members bill suggesting several positive amendments to the law has been 
given a second reading in the House of Lords and will be considered in the House of 
Commons in October. 

Page 36



 

 

 
The DfE instigated a consultation (April 2018) suggesting significant changes to 
national guidance, to which LBHF have contributed. This broadly supports the 
approach already being adopted in LBHF. Results are due in the Autumn. 
1.8 Unregistered Schools – any education provision offering the following 
 

 Full time provision 

 5 or more children in attendance 

 Education for a child with an Education, Health, and care Plan 
 
is required to register with the DfE; it is a criminal offence to operate a ‘school’ which 
is not registered. Currently, any unregistered schools identified within the LBHF are 
notified to the DfE; the proposed strategy would involve a more proactive and 
coordinated approach locally – better identification, support, monitoring and 
appropriate action. 
 
1.9 Supplementary Schools are however permissible and historically many have 
contributed positively to ensuring children have access to cultural or specialist 
teaching and learning, which may not be routinely available in mainstream school 
provision. 
 
1.10 The nature of both supplementary and unregistered schools means it is hard to 
get an accurate overview of provision operating locally but local intelligence suggests 
that many parents/carers, including those who elect to home educate, may consider 
enrolling their child in some form of additional educational provision.  
 
1.11 The Unregistered Schools Strategy will contribute to the Local Authority’s (LA) 
ability to proactively identify unregistered schools within the borough and agree 
appropriate actions, on a case by case basis. 
 
1.12 The information leaflet (Appendix 2) ‘Employing a Private Tutor or using a 
Supplementary School’ has been written to help parents/carers make considered 
and safe choices, if they are considering employing a private tutor or their child 
attends a supplementary school. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. The committee is asked to continue to endorse the current EHE policy and 
procedures and to support the implementation of the Unregistered Schools 
Strategy. 
  

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. Currently, Local Authorities are required to have an EHE policy and advised to 
have an Unregistered Schools Strategy. 

3.2. Both the EHE policy and the Unregistered Schools strategy can contribute to 
the Local Authority’s legal responsibility to ensure a suitable education is in 
place for all LBHF resident children, of statutory school age. 

3.3. The policy and strategy will also contribute to ensuring the Local Authority’s 
wider safeguarding responsibilities are supported. 
 
 

Page 37



 

 

4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  
 

4.1. There is currently no expectation for families to notify the LA if they are EHE 
and no requirement for LAs to maintain a register of EHE children or to 
routinely collate data. There is no reliable directory of supplementary schools 
or unregistered settings. 

4.2. Comparative data in relation to either is consequently unavailable, but the 
policy and procedures in relation to elective home education in LBHF have 
ensured best practice in relation to identification, supporting, monitoring and 
record keeping. 

4.3. In line with the national picture, LBHF has seen an increase in families 
identified as EHE, illustrated in the table below. 
 

 Summer 
2015 

Summer 
2016 

Summer 
2017 

Summer 
2018 

EHE children 
known to 
LBHF 

56 69 72 88 

 
4.4. The largely positive engagement by officers with the home educating 

community in LBHF has contributed to better identification and collaborative 
working; it is hoped the unregistered school’s strategy will enable better 
identification of potentially unsafe establishments and support for others to 
become registered.   

4.5. DfE funding targeted at identifying ‘out of school’ education settings is 
currently being secured. Locally, this will be used to support supplementary 
schools and identify and advise unregistered schools of their options. 

 
5. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1 Elective Home Education Policy 
(Revised March 2015) 
 

Elizabeth Spearman x 6231 CHS Education 

2 Unregistered Schools Strategy 
(July 2018) 

Elizabeth Spearman x 6231 CHS Education 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 - Employing a Private tutor or Using a Supplementary School 

Page 38



Employing a  
private tutor or using 
a Supplementary 
School
A guide for parents/carers

A
C
E

©
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 &
 F

ul
ha

m
 C

ou
nc

il.
 0

20
 8

75
3 

17
64

.  
Pr

in
te

d 
by

 H
am

m
er

pr
in

t.
 T

el
: 0

20
 8

75
3 

22
35

. 2
01

8.
 3

24
.1

0.

Guidance for parents/carers 
on using a private tutor or a 
supplementary school

There are many reasons why a parent/carer might 
want to employ a tutor or use a supplementary 
school. It may be to help their child improve 
their potential exam grades, to assist with 
their schoolwork in general, to learn a musical 
instrument or to study religious texts.

This leaflet is designed to support parents/carers 
ensure any tutor or supplementary school is 
suitable to work with their child. 

Although many parents/carers are happy with their 
tutors and supplementary schools, it is important 
to remember that tutors and staff working in 
supplementary schools do not need to be qualified 
and there are limited regulations to oversee their 
work or suitability to work with children. 

A person can be barred from teaching or commit 
an offence which makes them unsuitable to work 
with children yet still offer their services as a tutor 
or secure a job in an unregulated supplementary 
school.

Local Authorities and schools cannot provide a list 
of approved professionals who work as tutors or 
recommend supplementary schools.

Therefore, it is the parents/carers’ responsibility to 
make sure the tutor is qualified and does not pose 
a risk to their child. 

What should I do if my child tells me 
something inappropriate or abusive 
happened whilst with their tutor or 
when attending a supplementary 
school?

• Make sure your child knows that they should 
talk to you if anything happens that makes 
them upset, uncomfortable, scares them or 
worries them.

• Reassure your child that they have done the 
right thing to tell you and that what happened 
is not their fault.

• As you will be paying for the services of a tutor, 
you have the right to terminate the employment 
at any time and should do so if you are 
unhappy about the way that the tutor behaves 
with your child.

• Likewise, your child can stop attending a 
supplementary school if you are concerned 
about anything your child tells you. 

• If any adult has behaved in a way that is 
harmful, abusive or inappropriate towards your 
child or other children it is important that you 
contact the Local Authority (phone: 020 8753 
6600). A member of staff will discuss your 
concerns with you and decide if further action 
needs to be taken.

• In an emergency please call the Police on 999.

P
age 39



The following FAQs may help you decide if a 
tutor or a supplementary school is the right 
choice for your child.

I am worried about my child’s 
progress at school, what should I do?

If you have concerns about your child’s progress, 
the best thing to do is to talk to the school. The 
school might not know that you are worried. They 
also know your child well and may be able to offer 
reassurance or some additional support.

If you still decide to employ a tutor for your child 
or enrol them in a supplementary school, it is a 
good idea to inform your child’s regular school so 
they can be responsive to your child’s changing 
learning needs or let you know if the extra studying 
is impacting on their school work.

Where can I find a tutor or 
supplementary school to work with 
my child?

Many advertise in the local paper or on the 
internet, often under specific subject headings.  
Parents/carers considering this option are 
responsible for ensuring that they are satisfied that 
the tutor or teachers at the supplementary school 
chosen, are suitability qualified, and do not present 
a risk to a child’s welfare.  

Remember that your child’s school is not able to 
endorse tutors or supplementary schools or to 
check their suitability; you need to do this. 

How can I be sure that a tutor or 
attendance at a supplementary 
school does not pose a risk to my 
child?

Ask to see tutors work history, qualifications and 
always ask for references. Speak to other parents 
already using a tutor or supplementary school you 
are considering.

Always interview tutors you are considering and 
make sure to visit any supplementary school.

Ask to see a tutor’s professional qualifications and 
make sure they are competent in the area they will 
be assisting your child in. For example, do they 
have GSCEs/A Levels in the subject and do they 
know the course syllabus?

Ask about the qualifications of staff employed at 
supplementary schools

Arrange for your child to meet a tutor, ask your 
child what they thought of the tutor and how they 
felt during the meeting. 

Arrange for your child to visit any supplementary 
school you are considering to see what your child 
thinks – remember they will not learn if they are 
unhappy.

Reputable tutors and supplementary schools will 
understand that you are taking these steps to make 
sure your child is safe. If they have nothing to hide 
they will be happy to answer all your questions! 
If they are not, think about whether they are the 
right person to work with your child.

Where should the tuition take place?

If the tuition takes place in your home it should 
never happen in a bedroom even if it contains a 
study area.

If the tutor operates in their own home or premises 
then visit the location beforehand to make sure it is 
safe and appropriate for study. 

Wherever the tuition takes place, you, or another 
trusted adult, should remain in the building and 
you should have access to the teaching area at any 
time. Chaperone arrangements offered by the tutor 
should be refused.

Make sure your child knows where their tuition 
will take place and ask them to tell you if the tutor 
wants to change the arrangements.

Appropriate tutors should be aware of these 
professional expectations and are likely to offer 
them without your suggestion. 

Question whether the tutor is a suitable person to 
work with your child if they refuse to cooperate. 

Extra things to consider about 
Supplementary Schools

Are there separate bathrooms for children and 
adults? If meals are provided ask to see dining 
areas and kitchens. Are notices about fire 
procedures on display?

P
age 40



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

CHILDREN AND EDUCATION 
POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
3rd September 2018   

 
DIRECTOR’S UPDATE 
 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Information  
 

Key Decision: No  
 

Wards Affected: All  
 

Accountable Director: Steve Miley- Director of Children’s Services 
 

Report Author: Steve Miley  
Director of Children’s Services 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 2300     
E-mail: Steve.Miley@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides a brief overview of recent developments of relevance to the 

Children’s Services department for members of the Policy and Accountability 
Committee to consider. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. The Committee is asked to review and comment upon the contents of this report. 
 

 
3. EDUCATION 

 
Ofsted Inspections on local schools  
 

3.1 St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic Primary School received a short inspection on 
12th June 2018 and has maintained its good rating. Ofsted noted that: ‘Leaders 
have addressed inconsistencies in pupils’ past performance. Leaders have 
introduced new policies, procedures and a consistent approach to checking pupils’ 
starting points. Leaders accurately assess the standard of teaching in the school, 
and use this to create meaningful targets for improvement. Governors support and 
challenge the school. They have established a school improvement board, made up 
of leaders and governors, which meets regularly to review pupil progress and to 
challenge leaders.’ 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



3.2 Jack Tizard School received a short inspection on 12th June 2018 and has 
maintained its outstanding rating. Ofsted noted that: ‘The governing body provides 
clear strategic leadership and offers effective support and have implemented a 
number of school improvement strategies that have further strengthened the 
provision for pupils. Pupils are now provided with regular opportunities to apply 
skills to real-life situations. The level of pupil absence has reduced significantly and 
the headteacher has raised staff and parent expectations around attendance, 
including for those pupils who have additional health needs.’ 
 

3.3 Queensmill School received a short inspection on 22nd May 2018 and has 
maintained its outstanding rating. Ofsted noted ‘The addition of a girls’ unit, post-19 
provision and supported work experience. The School has introduced an 
assessment system that carefully tracks both academic progress and personal 
skills development. Teachers and support staff are exceptionally clear about 
additional needs, barriers to learning and pupils’ special interests. Consequently, 
teaching is sharply focused and pupil outcomes are outstanding. Frequent dialogue 
between teachers and therapists ensures that pupils’ needs continue to be met.’ 
 

3.4 Woodlane High School received a short inspection on 1st May 2018 and has 
maintained its good rating. Ofsted noted that: that the school has demonstrated 
strong practice and marked improvement in specific areas. This may indicate that 
the school has improved significantly overall. Therefore, Ofsted is recommending 
that the school’s next inspection will be a full section 5 inspection. Governance has 
strengthened considerably since the last inspection. All staff and governors share 
your clear sense of purpose and will to provide the best possible education in your 
school. The leadership is highly analytical and reflective. This means that areas for 
improvement are addressed promptly and systematically.’ 

 

Provisional outcomes at Foundation Stage and Key Stages 1 and 2  

3.5     Emerging outcomes are highly positive for LBHF at the Foundation Stage and at 
Key Stages 1 and 2. Attainment currently stands above the national average for 
children leaving Reception in 2018. Current data suggests that 74% of children 
Reception classes, throughout the borough, secured the Good Level of 
Development (GLD). This is 3% higher than the current national average. 88% of 
pupils in the borough’s Year 1 classes passed the phonics check compared with 
83% nationally and this represents a rise of two percent for the borough’s children 
compared with 2017. 

3.6     It is also strong picture of attainment for Reading, Writing and Mathematics 
combined at Key Stage 1. 71% of the borough’s Year 2 pupils reached the 
expected level of attainment. This represents a 2% rise compared with 2017 and 
appears to be 6% higher than the national average (currently at 65%.) 15% of Year 
2 pupils seem to have secured Greater Depth in Reading, Writing and Mathematics 
combined, compared with 12% nationally. Last year, 13% of Year 2 pupils in LBHF 
were judged to be at Greater Depth by this measure. 

3.7     In relation to outcomes at Key Stage 2, 74% of Year 6 pupils across the borough 
are ‘at expected’ for Reading, Writing and Mathematics compared with 63% 
nationally. 16% of Year 6 pupils have reached the higher standard in Reading, 
Writing and Mathematics combined, compared with 10% nationally and this 
represents a 2 percent increase for the borough’s pupils compared with 2017. 

Page 42



3.8      By these measures, a highly positive and improving picture of attainment is 
emerging across the borough, with approximately half of the borough’s schools 
securing even higher attainment compared with 2017. However, it is important to 
contextualise these results in relation to the progress pupils have made, given their 
very different academic starting points. Such pupil progress data has yet to be 
confirmed, but the early signs are that overall, pupils are making at least good 
progress in Reading and Mathematics from Key Stage 1 to Key Stage 2. At least 
average progress seems to have been made in Writing across the borough but as 
pupils’ skills in Writing are internally assessed, there needs to be a note of caution 
when interpreting the data. 

Schools Peer Review pilot 2018 

3.9 Knowing that a school’s best practice is thoroughly audited and validated serves to 
support all stakeholders’ confidence in the school’s self-evaluation process, 
especially where a school was judged as Good or Outstanding in their last 
inspection. Stakeholders also want to be sure that any areas the school has 
identified as less effective are on track to secure the required improvement. The 
purpose of the recently introduced LBHF peer review pilot is to get under the skin of 
two aspects of a school’s self-evaluation – a strength and an area for development. 

3.10   Since April, six primary schools and four ‘standalone’ nurseries have been involved 
in the LBHF peer review pilot and eight more primary schools are set to join the 
scheme in the autumn term. 

3.11    Led by an Ofsted trained external consultant, each review team includes two 
headteachers from other schools. They each pursue selected evidence trails 
pertinent to the host school’s chosen themes and these are ‘triangulated’ in review 
team meetings. Ensuring that the host head and selected senior staff work in 
collaboration with the review team, is integral to the process. During an initial 
evaluation of the pilot, one host head commented: ‘It enabled our team to take a 
step back from our own timetable of analytical processes of triangulating evidence 
by ‘including external eyes’. 

3.12   The great many strengths that have been validated during the on-going peer 
reviews are to be showcased during 2018-2019 so that a wider audience can 
benefit from seeing best practice across Hammersmith and Fulham. 

3.13    From now on, the aim is to involve all of the primary schools in LBHF in a rolling 
programme of peer review and to encourage headteachers to lead reviews 
themselves with light touch validation from external Ofsted trained consultants. As 
well as a focus on strengths and areas for development, we anticipate exploring 
themed reviews of aspects, which are currently in the spotlight, such as the primary 
curriculum, foundation subject leadership and inclusion. 

Caretaker house, windows update completion  
 
Windows 
 

3.14 Work has progressed on time and to budget for the installation of new double-
glazed windows at Brackenbury and Fulham Primary Schools. The listed status of 
the remaining Schools presents challenges, in balancing the programme objectives 
to improve 'comfort' levels for learners with important conservation considerations.  

Page 43



The School Assets team are working with colleagues in planning to consider an 
appropriate way forward.  A full business case for phase three of the programme 
will be submitted to cabinet in the Autumn.  
 
Caretakers Houses   
 

3.15   Feasibility of converting vacant School Caretakers houses for keyworker Housing 
for Teachers is underway.  Children's Services are working with collages in 
Corporate Property Services to explore the possibility of using existing arrangement 
for the temporary management of properties through the Council Contract for 
Property Guardians.  This scheme allows the Council to quickly let rooms, using 
temporary licences for Teachers.  Many of our schools are reporting challenges in 
recruiting and retaining Teachers, and we hope to have accommodation ready in 
the Autumn term. 

 
4. SEND  

 
The Education Health Care (EHC) Planning Team developing a more 
responsive service for residents and local SEND community  

 
Local context  

 
4.1  At the March CEPAC meeting Members were updated on the large piece of work 

being undertaken in order to disaggregate the SEN cases (EHC plans) from the tri-
borough to the sovereign borough. An Action Plan was put in place and a Project 
Group met weekly to carefully manage this process. 

 
4.2  It is now over 5 months since we ended the Shared SEN Service arrangements 

and created a sovereign H&F EHC Planning Service Planning Service. At the start 
of the service, six main areas of improvement were identified including: overdue 
EHC needs assessments; quality of EHC transfers; ongoing 
complaints/Ombudsman enquiries; data quality and casework recording; and lack of 
an effective case management solution.  

 
What has the SEN Service achieved so far? 

 
4.3 The service has co-produced a vision and set of values with staff, parents, carers 

and stakeholders. These are set out below: 
 

Our Vision  
 

We will deliver a world class special educational needs and disability service that 
ensures improved outcomes for children, young people and their families in a 
responsive, timely and transparent way. 

 
We will passionately focus on providing innovative, creative and efficient 
personalise services developed jointly with our local SEND community. 

 
Our Values:  

 
That we are: That we have: 
 Public servants that deliver an 

outstanding public service. 

 A ‘ can do’ attitude. 

 Pride and enjoyment in what we do, 

Page 44



 A highly performing service that 

meets its targets. 

 Polite and courteous to each other 

and to all stakeholders. 

 Respectful of others and their views. 

 Accessible and accountable. 

 Continually improving the way, we 

work and learning from our mistakes. 

 Open and encourage involvement of 

others. 

 Creative and innovative in our 

thinking. 

 

celebrate success, and have a sense of 

belonging to H&F. 

 An understanding of the strengths of 

diversity and the importance of 

ensuring the diverse nature of our 

community is represented in all that we 

do. 

 An approach which values the skills 

and competencies of each individual, 

based on what they bring to the 

organisation, rather than where they 

are in the organisation. 

 
 

Phase Transfers. 
 
4.4 We are legally required to complete Phase Transfers for children with an EHC Plan 

and name a placement for children transitioning from nursery to primary or primary 
to secondary by 15 February. There is also a 31 March deadline for those leaving 
secondary school for college. The Tri-Borough SEND Service completed most 
phase transfers naming a type of provision and not a named school. At the start of 
the service, there were over 311 children without an identified school or college 
place for September 2018. To remedy this, we allocated all Senior Coordinator/PFA 
Keyworker capacity (3 FTE) to work with parents, young people and educational 
settings to finalise placement arrangements for September 2018. This approach 
was successful and 301 EHCPs have been finalised with placements for 
September 2018. Nine of the remaining 10 young people are linked with College 
placements and we are working with the young people and their families to firm-up 
their preference following exam results. The remaining case is a nursery to primary 
placement. We are working with the school to support parental preference and have 
now agreed a package of support and phased transition.  

 
Overdue EHC needs assessments 
 

4.5 At the start of the new H&F service, there were 116 ongoing EHC needs 
assessments, of which 91 were either overdue or at risk of missing the 20-week 
deadline. There are now only 6 overdue assessments. We have streamlined the 
assessment process and are working with partners to improve their statutory 
performance (timely provision of statutory advice within 6 weeks).  

 
Communication 
 

4.6 We have learnt from the feedback and experience of parent and carers of the 
shared SEN Service and understood the importance of good communication. At the 
start of the new sovereign service, we established a Duty Team to support the 
resolution of enquiries at first point of contact. Feedback from parents, including 
ParentActive is that this is working well, and parents can now contact the service 
and their queries are being resolved. We have also published contact details for the 
EHC Planning extended leadership team.  

 
EHC Plan template and business forms 

Page 45



 
4.7 The ECH Planning Team has worked with Parents Active, setting and the wider 

SEND community to improve the ECH Plan template, so this is accessible to 
parents, young people and easily applicable in education settings. We plan on 
reviewing all other service forms and templates with parents, young people and 
other stakeholders in the coming academic year.  

 
Transitions team 
 

4.8 The establishment of a joint education, adult and children social care team to 
support a seamless transition for young people and their parents.  

 
What are the key challenges over the coming months?   

 
Data quality, casework recording and a case management solution.  
 

4.9 Establishing an effective case management system to coordinate assessments and 
reviews is a service priority. Corporate IT has been asked by the Service to 
undertake an options analysis for a long-term case management solution.  

 
On-going complaints/Ombudsman enquiries  

 
4.10 The Sovereign Service is now working towards quality on-time. We have however 

inherited several complaints and Ombudsman enquires regarding delayed 
assessments, communication and data breaches. All these events took place under 
Shared Service arrangements.  

 
Quality of EHC transfers. 

 
4.11 There is a shared understanding that the EHC Plans from EHC Transfers need 

improving. The Service will undertake a thorough review of the majority of the 930 
EHC Plans, working with parents and settings to ensure that these plans reflect 
presenting needs and provide the right support. As part of the process the Service 
will use a new H & F template.  

 
5. FAMILY SERVICES  
 

Looked After Children demand 
 

5.1     There is a continuing trend of a year on year increase in Looked After Children.   
 
  
5.2      

A
s
 
with other London Boroughs, we are seeing a rise in demand from adolescents at 
risk due to knife crime, child sexual exploitation and children being used for drug 
trafficking (County lines).  This group of young people have such complex and 
specialised needs that we are less able to meet their needs in in-house foster care, 
resulting in placements in specialist fostering and residential placements which 
have a higher unit cost. There is limited availability of specialist placements across 

  March 
2015 

March 
2016 

March 
2017 

March 
2018  

August  
2018 

LAC 
numbers 

185 198 221 230 240 

Page 46



the country and therefore the unit cost of provision has increased significantly, 
which has impacted significantly on the overall Family Services budget position.  

 
New entries to Care  
 

5.3     Since 1st April 2018, 49 children have entered the care system, 10 of whom were 
Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children. We have completed an analysis of the 
39 citizen children and identified the key issues that led to the care episode.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          Entry to care case examples 
 
5.4     W family 8 children age 1-13 years. Long history of child protection concerns and 

care proceedings relating to domestic violence and mother’s mental health. A 
serious domestic violence incident on 26th July resulted in mother having a mental 
health crisis and as consequence all 8 children were made subject of police 
protection and being placed in foster care, in 4 separate placements.   
 

5.5    DW 8-year-old boy has a diagnosis of ASD, is non- verbal, significant emotional 
and     physical neglect and never been to school. Mother refused any service 
support and did not comply with child protection plan. Concerns re mothers 
undiagnosed mental health issues.   Care proceedings secured safeguarding and 
the child was removed and placed with foster carers where he is thriving. The judge 
was particularly impressed by the decisive approach adopted by LBHF given that 
the family had previously been known to two previous LA’s.  
 

        Ofsted - Annual Conversation  
 

5.6   The Children’s Service management team met with Ofsted inspectors for our annual 
conversation on 29th June 2018. We presented our self-evaluation which they 
commented positively on. Key areas discussed  

 
• 94% of schools are judged good or outstanding  
• Establishment of peer-to-peer improving-school reviews.  
• Establishment of head teacher groups,  
• Redeveloping school sites to release capital 
• Developing accommodation for care leavers.  
• Plans to convert homes that were originally occupied by school caretakers  

into accommodation for teachers and social workers. 
• Ambitions for the SEN and disability service,   

Age 
Cohort 

Number Identified key issues 

16 -17 
years 

10 Parental child relationship conflicts; ASB; Increased 
vulnerabilities and exposure to external risks  

11 – 15 
years 

8 Onset of ASB and defiance at home, school, 
community; past neglect issues; parental difficulties 
with behaviour management 

7 – 10 
years 

3 Parental capacity – mental health, substance 
misuse, DV, neglect, poor supervision 

1 – 6 
years 

14 Parental capacity – mental health, substance 
misuse, DV, neglect, poor supervision 

Under 1 
year 

4 Parental vulnerabilities – mental health, life 
experiences; care skill 

Page 47



• Stephen Wiltshire Centre  
• ICAT - significant change to front-door services; all referrers can now have a 

conversation with a social worker prior to making a referral. 
• All social workers trained in systemic practice.  
• Development of the new adolescent service.  
• Ambitions for the Family Support service   

 
       Timing and type of next inspection 
 
5.7   The next judgement inspection will be a short inspection, which will last one week.  A 

two-day focused visit is likely to be completed before the short inspection. We invited 
the inspectors to consider looking at our Care leavers service, as the service has 
been reorganised and strengthened since our last inspection. The service is currently 
working on an inspection preparation plan.    

 
6. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1      As this report is intended to provide an update on recent developments, there are 

no immediate equality implications. However, any equality issues will be highlighted 
in any subsequent substantive reports on any of the items which are requested by 
the Committee. 

 
7.       LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 As this report is intended to provide an update on recent developments, there are 

no immediate legal implications. However, any legal issues will be highlighted in 
any subsequent substantive reports on any of the items which are requested by the 
Committee. 

 
8.       FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1     As this report is intended to provide an update on recent developments, there 

are no immediate financial and resource implications. However, any financial and 
resource issues will be highlighted in any subsequent substantive reports on any of 
the items which are requested by the Committee. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 
None. 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 The Family Support Service
	6 Elective Home Education and Unregistered Schools
	Employing Private Tutor_dl_flyer

	7 Director's Update Report

